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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUN|C|PAUW OFAGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO R|CO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2013



CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUMTA}{TS AND CONSULTAT{TS

INDCPENDENT AUOITOR'S REPORT

To the Hono6ble Mayor and
Municipal Legislative Body

Municipality of Aguas Buenas
ASuas Buenas, Puerto Rico

Report on the Finanaial Statement

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico a5 of
and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statementt which
colledively comprise the Muhicipality of A8uas Buenas, Puerto Ricds basic financial statements as
listed in the table ofcontents. We did not audit the financial statements of Espiritu Santo Proiect, which
represent 10O% percent ofthe total assets, net position and revenue of the business type activities.

Management's Responsibility tor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principtes generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation offinancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud oa
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of Espiritu Santo Poect. Those statements were audited by other
auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Espiritu Santo Project, is based solely on the report ofthe other auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditin8 standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

CPA Audit Ouali9 Cenier

MEMAEN:

Amerkin lnstitute of Cenified Public A@nta.ts
Pu€rto Ri.o Sciety of C€6iI€d pubti. Accourtantr

PUCfiIIO RICO dr703 rEL 7a7-732{O20 FAX: 7a 7,732-0685 EMA|L di.ze@dorrdiacpa.@PO SOX 4OA, 4! RAFAEL IAIC SI, AGUA5 BUTI'IAS



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT (CONTINUED):

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditot's judgment, including the
assessment of the rjsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are approprlate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

ln our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditor, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Riao as of lune 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
flnancial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles geneGlly accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matters

Requ|red Supplementory Inlo ndtion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the LJnited States of America requi.e that the management's
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 to 12 and 43-45, respectively,
be presented to supplement the basic financialstatements. Such information, although not a part ofthe
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standa.ds Board, who consideE
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordanae with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with managements responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowled8e we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an

opinion or provide any assurance.

Othet lnfo notion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stotes, Locol
Governments, ond Non-Profit Orgonizotions, and is not a required part ofthe basic financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUOITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED):

Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjeded to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basi. financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconcilinB such information
directly to the underlying accountin8 and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting RequiiedW Govenfient Auditing Stondods

ln accordance with Govemment Auditing Stondords, we have also issued our report dated January 30,
2014, on our €onsideration of the Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain prov;sions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our test;ng of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results ofthat testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over flnancial reporting or on compliance- That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondotds in
considering Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

January 30,2014
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E55457 ofthe Puerto Rico

society ofCertified Publ:c Accounta nts was

afflxed to the original ofthis report.

Carlos R. Diaz CPA, PSC
License No.275

Expire December 1,2015
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS
MANAGEMENT'S OISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDEDIUNE 30, 2013

This discussion and analysis ofthe Municipality of Aguas Buenas, puerto Rico (the Municipalitv) financial
performance provides an overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended on
June 30, 2013. The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those financial statements.
The discussion and analysis includes comparative data for prior year as this information is available for
the fiscal yea. ended on June 30, 2012. This MD&A is prepared in order to comply with such
pronouncement and, among other purposes, to provide the financial statements users with the
following major information:

1. a broader basis in focusing important issues;

2. acknowledgement of an overview ofthe Municipalivs financialactivities:

3. provide for an evaluation of its financial condition as of the end of the indicated fiscal year,
compared with prior year results;

4. identification of uses offunds in the flnan.ing ofthe Municipaliby'svariety of activities and;

5. assess management's ability to handle budgetary functions.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following comments about the financial condition and results of operations as reflected in the
financial statements prepared forfiscalyear 2013 deserve special mention:

1. Total assets of the Municipality amounted to 532,946,414 which represents a decrease of 1%

compared to prior fl scal year.

2. At the end of fiscal year 2013, total liabilities amounted to 514,076,334. Out of said amount,
570,272,78 corresponded to long term liabilities of which 58,458,000 represented the
outstanding balance of bonds and notes issued. The Municipality continued to meet all debt
service requirements, most ofwhich was paid from selfgenerated revenues.

3. Total net position ofthe Municipality amounted to S18,870,080 which represents an increase of
3% if compared to prior fisca I yea r.

4. Total revenues available fo. the financing of activities as reflected in the Statement of Activities
amounted to 516,086,191 derived from the following sources:5370,448 charges for servicesj

52,535,025 from operating grants and contributionsj 51,256,782 frcm capital grants and
contributions obtained from other sources, and S11,923,935 from general revenues available.

5. Total expenses incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs as reflected in the
Statement of Activities amounted to 515.485,564.

6. As refleded in the Statement of Actjvities, the current flscal year operations contributed to an
increase in the Net Position figure by 5600,527.
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COMMONWEAI,TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS {CONTINUE)
YEAR ENDED IUNE 30,2013

FINANCIAT HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's Governmental Funds reported

combined ending fund balances of 54,556,521.

As the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's general fund deficit amounted to
S1,805,120 compared to the deficit of S1,538,355 in the prior fiscal year.

The actualGeneralFund budgetary activities resulted in an unfavorable balance of5131,531.

FUNDAMENTATS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION

The approach used in the presentation of the financial statements of the Municipality is based on a
government-wide view of such statements as well as a presentation of individual funds behavior during
fiscal year 2013. The combination of these two perspectives provide the user the opportunity to
address significant questions concerning the content of said financial statements, and provide the basis

for a comparable analysis of future years performance. The comparative analysis is a meaningful and

useful management tool for municipal management in the decision making process.

Under the aforementioned approach, assets and liabilities are recognized using the accrual basis of
accounting which is similar to the method used by most private enterprises. This means that current
yea/s revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless ofwhen cash is received or paid.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS

The basic financial statements consist of the Bovernment wide financial statements, the funds financial

statements and the notes to the financial statements which provide details, disclosure and description

ofthe most important items included in said statements.

The Statement of Net Position reflects information of the Municipality as a whole of a consolidated basis

and provides relevant information about its financial strength as reflected at the end of the fiscal year.

such financial level is measured as the difference between total assets and liabilities, with the difference

between both items reported as net position. lt is important to note that although municipalities as

governmental public entities were not created to operate under a profit motive framework, the return

on assets performance plays an important role in their financial operations. The higher the increments

achieved in net revenues, the higher the capacity to increase the net position figure either thru

additional borrowings or thru internally generated funds. This in turn will benefit the welfare of the
Municipality of Aguas Buenas constituents.

The Statement of Activities is focused on both gross and net cost of the various activities of the
Municipality. lt presents information which shows the changes in the Municipality's net position at the
most recent fiscal year. Based on the use of the accrual basis of accounting, changes are reported as

soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Under said

approach, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement ofActivities based on the theory that it
will result in cash flows to be realized in future periods.

5
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS

MANAGEMENT',S DTSCUSSTON ANO ANAIYS|S (CONT|NUE)

YEAR ENOEDJUNE 30,2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS (CONTINUE)

A brief review ofthe Statements of Activities of the Municipality at lune 30, 2013, shows total expenses

incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs amounted to S15,485,664. Upon examining the
sources of revenues for the financing of said programs, the Statement reflects that 54,162,255 was

derived from the following sources:5370,448 charges for services; 52,535,025 from operating grants

and contributions; and S1,255,782 from €apital grants and contributions obtained from other sources.

General revenues for the year amounted to S17,923,936. When such figure is added to the 54,162,255
previously mentioned, total revenues available for the financing of activities amounted to S15,085,191.
There was an excess of revenues over expenses in the amount of 5600,527 which contributed with an

increase to the figure of net position attained at the end ofthe fiscalyear.

The Fund Financial Statement is another important component of the Municipality's financial
statements. A fund is a groupin8 of related accounts that are used to maintain accountability and

controls over economic resources of the Municipality that have been segregated for specific activities.

The Municipal fund type of accounting is used to demonstrate compliance with related legal

requirements. lnformation offe.ed thru this Statement is limited to the Municipality most significant
funds and is particularly related to the local government only, instead of the government as a whole.

Government funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as those reported as

governmental activities. The funds are reported using an accounting method known as modified accrual

accounting which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted into cash.

The fund statement approach Bives the user a short term view of the Municipality's government

operations and the basic services it provides. Since the focus of government funds !s narrower than that
of the financial statements as a whole, it also helps the user with comparable information presented in

the governmental activities report. By doin8 so, readers of the basic financial statements may

understand better the long-term effect ofthe Municipality's short-term financialdecisions.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

Historically, a significant group of infrastructure assets (such as roads, bridges, trafric signals,

underground pipes not associated with utilities, etc.) have not been recognized nor depreciated in the

accounting records ofthe Municipality. GASB 34 requiresthat such type ofassets be jnventoried, va lued

and reported under the governmental column of the Government_Wide Statement

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate the

aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset management

designed to maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. lf the government develops the a55et

management system, (the modified approach) which periodically (at least every three years), by

cate8ory, measures and demonstrate its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards,

the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. ln this particular respect,

the Municipality has elected the lse of recognizing depreciation under the useful life method and it
contemplates to continue this treatment on said basis.
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COMMOI{WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS

MANAGEMENT',S OTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSIS (CONfl ]{UE)

YEAR EiIOEO 
'UNE 

30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE M UNICIPATITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The Statement of Net Position serves as an indicator ofthe Municipalivs financial position at the end of
the fiscal year. ln the case of the Municipality of ABUas Buenas, primary government assets exceeded

total liabilities by 518,870,080 at the end of 2013, compared to 518,269,553, at the end of the previor.ts

year, as showed in the followint condensed Statement of Net Position ofthe Primary Government.

coftterEod statenE.t of Net Aets

Cure.t and other Bssets

Curent and other liauliti€s

h!€st€d in captal a.sets, nei of related d€B

9,233,L68

23,7L3,246

1o,6L1,447

22,416,464
11,37a,219) -t3%

496,742 4%

32,946,4!4 33,427,9t1 @a!,497) L%

3,403,616

LO,272,7L4

4,036,566

LL,121-792

(232,950) 6'A

(449,074) A%

14,076,334 15,15A,358 o-,o42,o24) 7%

16,aa3,483

6,451-L71

i4,464,574)

t8,oo7,477

4,913,725

(4,652,O49)

tL,1243941 S%

L,537,446 3L%

1A7.475 4%

$ 18,a7O,OAO $ 1a,269,5s3 600,527

35,0m,mo

10,(m,mo

25,00,mo

20,0m,000

15,0m,mo

10,00,m0
5,000,00

t 2013

3 2012
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUE)

YEAR ENDEDIUNE 30,2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOTE (CONIINUED)

Approximately 30 percent of the Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while 64 percent

resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Char8es for Services provide 2 percent of

the total revenues. The Municipalitty's expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for
public work and sanitation (38%), general administration (24%), and educational and recreational (9%).

As follow, is presented a comparative analysis of governmental-wide data. with this analysis, the
readers have comparative information with the percentage of change in revenues and expenses from
prior year to current year.

Condensed Statement oi Actlvttles

cha €es for seruices
Operating gants and contnbutions
Capital grants and contributions

Municipalli@nsetax
Municipalsalesand use tax
Grants and entitleme.ts

lnterest and investment ea rnings

General administEtion

Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
Culture a nd tourist developm ent
Economic development
Familyand $cia I development

Education, culture and recreational
Housi.gand urban Development

change in net asts

Net assets, end ofyear

2013 201-2 change %

370,448
2,535,O25
L.256,7A2

2,529,3aO
756,O76

1,365,542
6,504476

114,160
225,435
424,427

370,140
2,306,323
!,44L697

2,546,943
7!4,904

1,206,601
6,230,795

327,a43
249955
420,OOO

264
224,702 tO%

1224.915) (1s%)

(57,563) (2%)

37,!72 5%
154,941 !3%
277,68a 4!%

(2r,643) (6s%)

\24,120) (1O%)

4,427 a:%

16,086,191 15,499,24! 146,950 L%

3,677,365
52L,400

5,954,958
1,,626,77 !

209,944
270,694
849,183

L,440,236
498,194
436,471

4,L73,828
60!,222

4,737,101
1,625,062

190,443
282,367
877,864

1,a10,738
490,105
372,489

(496,463) tt2%)
{79,4221 (13%)

a,2!7,857 26%
1,709

19,501 tO%
(11,669) l4%)
(2a,6a1) \3%)

(37O,5O2) t2O%)
4,093 20,4

64.342 t7%

15,445,664 15,161.259 324,405 2%

2A'%

30a

600,527

1a,269,553

737,942

L7,53L,57I

(137355)

737,942

$ 1a,a70,oao $ 1A,269,553 600,527
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS

MAI{AGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTII{UE)

YEAR El,lDED JUNE :lO, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOTE (CONTINUED)

Revenues 2013 r Ctrrges foa serYices

r O0e.rtirg araflrs ard
(ortributir6

r cadtal granti ard cofltrihrtioos

t Munkipal sales ard use tar

t Graflts Jid ertiHenEnt3

r od|er locrl liales

htere5t end iw€suicrA qJminas

Munictpal r.erlse tax

a GerEral adninistsatidr

a Publc sfety

r Pubkwflls d sdrtatixt

r Cutture ard tourist
3X d*eloprEnt

r lkalth rd ktrrre

a t(ono.n- dardoprrlm

c Eclr<atkrr rld te<reational

.- Fanily rd scial
&lr€loprYPnt
Housing a|d Urbn
DelrelopfiPnt
ltere5t ql brB-leon debt

2%

Expenses 2013

l% 3%
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF AGUAS BUENAS

MANAGEMENT',S OISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUE)

YEAR ENDED,IUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,

outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the

Municipalihy's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful

measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscalyear.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined

endingfund balances ofS4,556,521, a decrease ofS1,525,931in comparison with the prioryear.

Within the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief operating fund of the

Muni€ipality. As ofJune 30,2013, the Municipality's deficit amounted to S1,806,120.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council revised the Municipality's budget in order to
include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal year based on current

developments that positively affected the Municipality's finances. lncreases in budgeted expenditlres
were also made since the law mandates a balanced budget.

The actual General Fund bldgetary activities resulted in an unfavorable balance of 5131,531 caused

mainly due to unexpected variances in revenue and expenditures.

CAPITAT ASSETS AN D DEBT ADM INISTRATION

CapitalAssets

The Municipalitys investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2013, amounts to 541,429,335 with an

accumulated depreciation of 517,716,089 (including depreciation charges for the year totaled

51,116,097), leaving a net book value of 523,773,246. This investment in capital assets includes land,

construction in progress, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure, furnishing, computers and

vehicles. lnfrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value only to the state,

such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

The Municipality finances a si8nificant portion of its construction activities through bond or notes

issuances. The proceeds from bond and notes issuances designated for construction activities are

committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As of.lune 30,

2013, the Municipality has S2,765,M6 of unexpended proceeds mainly from bonds and notes issuances

that are committed to future construction adivities.

10



Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general obligation municipal
bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality
may be pledged.

The applicable law also requires that, in order for a Municipality to be able to issue additional general

obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality must have sufficient "payment capacity''. Act No.54
provides that a Municipality has sufficient "payment capacity''to incur additional general obli8ation
debt if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected with
respect to such Municipality's Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as p.ojected by GDB, will be

sufficient to service to maturity the Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the
additional proposed general obligation debt ("Payment Capacity").

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as

shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and notes. ln addition,
principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes
issued in anticipation of the issuance of general oblieation bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a

first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues.

Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service payments on

Beneral obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the
Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are not sufficient

to cover such debt seNice. lt has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on

Beneral obligation debt ofthe Municipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal and state Srants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been very
predictable. Federal State Srant revenues may vary if new grants are available but the revenue also is

very predictable. Those factors were considered when preparinE the Municipality's budget for the fiscal

year 2013 2014.

As part of this plan, the Municipality of A8uas Buenas will benefit from federal grants to improve its

services to its constituents and from the economic activity generated within its territory due to projects

funded by ARRA.

COMMONWEAI,TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS

MANAGEMENT',S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSTS (CONT|NUE)

YEAR ENDEDjUNE 30, 2013
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS
MANAGEMENTS DTSCUSSTON AND ANALyStS (CONTtNUE)

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2013

FINAL COMMENTS

The Municipality is an autonomous governmental entity whose powers and authority vested on its
Executive and Legislative Branches are specifically established in the Municipal Autonomous Act
approved in August 1991. By virtue of such powers, it provides a wide range of services to its
constituents which includes, among others, public works, education, public safety, public housing,
health, community development, recreation, waste disposal, welfare and others. The Municipality's
principal sources of revenues are derived from property taxes, municipal license taxes, subsidies from
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's General Fund and contributions from the Traditional and Electronic
Lottery sponsored by said Government.

The Municipality's management is committed to a continued improvement in the confection of a budget
that will response to the needs of the public and private sectors in accordance with its permissible

revenues levels. lt further contemplates to maintain or improve its current levels of Net Position as
indicative of a strong financial position which has been identified as one ofthe main short and long-term
obledives of the Municipalitv.

FINANCIAT CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are desi8ned to present users (citizens, taxpayer, customers,
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstrate the
Municipality's accountability. lf yo! have questions about the report or need additional financial
information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Officer.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STaIEMENT OF NET PosrTroN

A5 OF.luNE 30,2013

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscalagent
Account receivable:

Governmentalagencies
Property tax
sale tax
Municipaltax

Other assets

Capitalassets, net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES ANO I{ET POSITION

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses

Advances

Due to other agencies

long-term debt:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Totalliabilities

Net Position:
lnvested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service
Replacements and others

Capital project and others
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position

GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES

5 1,840,814

4,241,352

499,s86
2,212,609

113,662
2,682

23.302.673

s322131fj

EUSIN€SS-

TYPE

ACTIVITIES

5284,997

37,466
410.573

sr33,036

5 2,72s,81.1

4,241,352

499,586
2,212,609

113,662
2,682

31,466
23.713.246

512p45A14

7,674,107
730,241

s9,298

1,255,801

9.951.736

13.675.183

s6,994
320.982

401.151

1,70L,2A2
730,24L

59,294

1,312,795
to.212.1L8

14.076.334

16,883,483

2,456,675
217,449

3,183,001

14.464.574)

18.870.080

23,11s

16,850,886

2,456,675

3,183,001

t4.ss2.313)

18.538.195

s322j337a

32,597

217,449

81.799

331.885

5733-036 5i2-948A14

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI-IW OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIEs

FOR THE YEAR EiIDEOJUNE 30,2013

FUNCTIONS AI{D PROGRAMS

Governmental activities:
General administration
Public safety
Education and recreational
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
Culture and tourist development
Economic development
Family and social development
Housing and Urban Development
lnterest

Tota I governmenta I activities

Business type-activities:
Housing

lnterest
Business type - activities

Total

EXPENSES

s {3,677,36s)
{s21,400)

17,440,2361

{5,9s4,9s8)
{1,626,711)

(209,984)

127O,698)
(849,183)
(204,131)
(411.0s0)

{15,165.776)

1294,067],
12s.8271

(319.888)

CHARGE FOR

SERVtC€S

S 28,018

NET
(EXPENSE)/

REVENUE

5 (3,337,166)

(48s,998)
(915,289)

14,69a,776)
35,124

{209,984)
127O,69A)
(849,183)
(204,131)

{411.050)

{11,345,951)

48,353
125.821)
22.542

PROGRAM REVENUE

OPERAflNG CAPITAL
GMIiTS AND GRANTSAND

CONTRIBUTIOI{S CONTRIBUTIONS

5 340,199
35,402

496,929

51,2s6,782
1,662,495

28,018

142,430

2.535.025 1.256.782

342,430

51151185-664) 5370,443 52t35J29 51.255Jn S111l&Ag)

(Continue)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNtCtPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO R|CO

STATEMENT oF AcnvmEs (CoNnNuED)

Foe THE YraR ENDEo luNE 30,2013

Net (expense)/revenue

Generalrevenue:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipaltax
Sale tax
Construction exclse tax

Grants and entitlements
Rent
lnterest
Other

Totalgeneral revenues

Changes:n net position

Net position at beginning

Net position at end

GOVENI{MENTAI.

ACnVIES

S(11.34s.9s1)

2,529,380
756,076

1,365,582

774,160
6,50a,476

t12,0t2
225,75a
3t2.41.5

7t,923,259

517,308

77.960.487

s 18Er8J95

BUSINESS.TYPE

ACTIVITIES

5 22.s42

617

23,219

308.666

531.885

EIIAI

s{11.323.409)

2,s293AO
756,016

1,365,582
t74,760

6,508,476
7L2,O72
225,835
3!2.4t5

1Lj23.936

600,527

18.269.s53

s18,820n80

677

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese flnancialstatements.
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OFAGUAS SUENA' PUERTO RICO

BALANCESHEET

GovERNMEitTAL FUNDs

As OfJUNE 30,2013

GENERAL

FUND

s 171,531
12,306

7,112,947
71,332
90,047
88,458
2.642

2.155.443

7,451,234
2,251,O27

200,000
59,298

3.961,563

OEBT

SERVICE

OTHER TOTAI.
I.OAN GOVERNMENTALGOVERNMEITJTAL

S4.I45.OOO FUNDS FUNDSASSETS:

cash:
Cash in bank
Cash with fiscal agent

Reaeivables:

Propertytaxes
sale tax
Due for others governmental agencies
Due from otherfunds
Other

Total assets

Uabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenues
Due to other fund
Due to other a8encies

Totalliabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Debt service
Capitalproject
Other purpose

LJnassigned

Totalfund balances

Total liabilities and fund balan.e

sr,920,723 52,208,744

499,622
36,330

sl,224,166
s43,996

409,539
200,000

51,396,397
4,645,769

2,272,609
t73,662
499,585
288,458

2,682

9.199,163

1,478,860
2,816,025

288,458
59,298

2,456.675 2.204,744

470,984

2.378.301

27,622
94,015
88,458

470_494

1,985,691

210.095

2,16a,206

1,985,691
2,2O8,744
2,168,206
(1.806.120)

4,555,521

s9J99J53

2,208,744

(1.806.120)

(1,806,120)

s2X5sAA3

7.945_691 1.204,744

52-455l,s 52293J44

2,168.206

s2l?8,301

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

REcoNctLlAnoN OF THE GovERNMENTAL FUNDs

BAI.ANCE SHEEITo THE SIATEMENT OF NET PoSITIoN

As OFJUNE 30,2013

Fund balances in tovernmental funds

Amounts repofted Jor governmentol octivities in the Stdtement ol Net Position ore

difIercnt becouse: S 4,556,521

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the flrnds 23,302,673

Deferred property tax revenue in Bovernmentalfunds financial statements
whereas recorded as revenue in the Bovernmental activities 2,085,7A5

Long-term liabilities and accrual expenses are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Bonds and notes payable (8,458,000)

Compensated absences 17,226,2a7)
Estimated liability for landfill post-closure costs (1,360,000)

Accrued interest 1199,247)
Amount due to CRIM (163,255)

Net position oI govemmentol octivities 518138J95

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SIATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGEs IN FUND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2013

5ale tax
Constructior excise taxes

Grants and entitlements

Oth€r

Expendltur€s:
General administration

Education and recreational

Public works and sanitation

Healih and welfare
Culture and tourist develoPment

Economic developm ent
Family and social development
Planning and urban develoPment

GENERAL

rulq

s 1,s33,916
156,O76

907,187
114,160

6,413,798
!12,012
224,552
340,433

lo.462.134

3,246,948
415,243
793,377

4,307,631
332,015
208,198
268,168

630,116
171,531

DEBT

sEnvrct
E!!!!

s 498,855

4s8,395

IOAN
s4.14s.000

OTHER

GOVERNMEMTAI

!9!49

totAt
GOVERNMENIAL

tu!99

s 2,032,772
756,076'"

1,365,582
114,160

10,293,623
772,O12

22s,ts8
340.433

15.239.816

3,530,578
475,243

1,255,885
1,461,437
7,626,523

208,198
258,168
763,326
204,1,3t

555,000
401.258

16.765.741

53,819,82s

606

951.451 3.819.825

283,630

472,508
2,237,856
7,294,501

t33,2r0
32,600

921,944

10 433.230

s55,000
401.258

9s6.258 921948

1.599 (921.948)

4.454.311

Excess (deficiency)of revenue over expenditures 

-2q9EI

(634.486) (1.525.931)

Other financing sour.es (uses):

Operating transfer in
Operatins tra nsfer out

Total oth er flnancing sources

Excess of revenu€s and otherfinancinS tource
over (under) expehdliuresand other financing

Fund balance at beginning of Year

tund balance at end oI year

606 19t,275
t797.27sl, 1606l

{ 196.669} 196,669

l!67,765], 198,268 (921,948)

(1.638.355) 1.787.423 3,130.692

s11,80e!ZQ) sr.i35,691 52208244

197,881

{197.881)

(534,486)

2.802.692

s2168206

(1,52s,931)

6.082.452

s 415!12!

^ 
The accompanying notes 

?Je 
aDi{qal pan of these financial statements.
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Municipaltaxes
Saletax
Construction excise taxes

Grantsand entitlements
Rentalincome
lnterest

Expenditures:
General administration

Education and r€creational
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
Culture and tourist development
Economic development
Family and social development
Planning and urban development
Debtservice:

Principal

Totalexpenditures

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT Or REvENuEs, ExpENDrruREs

ANo CHANGES IN FUND BAIANCE.GOVERNMENTAL FUNDs

FoRTHE YEAR ENDEo luNE 30,2013

DEBT

SERVICE LOAN

rulss S4.14s,ooo

498,856

458,39s

10.462.134 957,457

3,246,944
475,243
793,377

4,307,633
332,016
208,198
264,164
630,116
171,531

GENERAI

rulq

S 1,s33,916

756,076
907,147
114,160

6,413,794
112,O12

224,552
340.433

s3,819,825

OTHER

GOVERNMEMIAL

t!!s!

IOIAI
GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS

5 2,032,772

756,O76

1,365,582

114,160
10,293,623

112,O12

225,154
340.433

15,239.816

3,530,578
475,243

1,265,885

7,467,437

1,626,523
208,198
264,164
763,326
204,131

555,000
401.258

16.165.741

{1.525.931)

197,441
{197.881)

606

927,948

3.819.825

283,630

472,504
2,237,456
1,294,5O7

133,210
32,600

Excess {deficiency)of revenue over expenditu res 

-2q9q}

10.433,230 4.454.311

1634.486)

555,000
401,258

956.2s8 921,948

1.599 (921.948)

Other financing sources (uses):

Operating tra nsfer in
Operating transfer out

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other financing source
over (unded expenditures and otherfinancing

Fund balance at beginning olyear llil8l5, 1.787.423

Fund baran€e at end orye". [liJft r"*r20, s1.e85 6sr

The accompanying note, ur" 
"n 

int"gr"t p".t fllf" fin"n.i"t ,,"t"r"ntr.

606 197,275

lt97.27sl 1606)

{ 196.669} 196,669

1161,765) 198,268 (921,948)

3.130,692

92BtA4

(634,486)

2.4O2.692

52168206

(1,525,931)

6.082.452

S 4t56,521

rutr--,\
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COMMONWEAI-TH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPAI-ITY OFAGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

REcoNctLAnoil OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUEs, ExpENDtTURE5
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAIICE5 oFGoVERNMENTAI.

FUNDS TO THE STATEMTNf OF ACTIVITIES

Fo8 THE YEAn E DEDJUNE30,2013

Net ahange in fund balances - total govehmental funds

Amounts reported for GovernmentalActivities in the Statement ofActivities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities and changes in net position, the cost ofthose assets is allocated overtheir
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of
capitalassets recorded in the current period.

Depreciation expense on capitalassets is reported in the statement ofactivities, but it
does not require the use ofcurrent financial resources. Therefore, depreciation
expense is not reported as expenditure in governmentalfunds.

Governmentalfunds report principal payments on long-term debts as expenditures,
whereas the principal payments reduce the long,term debt in the statement of net
position.

Change in accrued expenses which does not require the use ofcurrent financial
resources:
Accrued interest
Compensating absences
Amount due to CRIM
Deferred property tax

Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financialstatements.

s(1,s2s,931)

t,96a,9D

(1,05s,433)

555,000

19,792)
75t,279

5,650
495.608

Ll77t08
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEM€NT OF FI ANCIAT POSITION - PROPRIEIARY FU O

JUNE30,2013

A5sErs

CuraentAssets:
Cash

Other current assets

Property and Equipment

Restrided deposits

Other Assets

LIAEILITIEs AI'{O NET POSITION

Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Current maturities of mortgage note
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

[ong term-debt, net of current maturities

Net position:
lnvestment in net assets, net afflliated debt
Uninvestment

Total liabilities and net position

PRoPRIETARYFUND

EsPlRrTu SaNTo PtolEcr

s 73,s08
9.385

42,893

4t0,573

211,489

28.081

s733-036

s6,994
23.L75
80,169

320.9A2
401,151

32,s91
299.2aa
331.88s

s733n36

part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEAITH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMEMT oF AcnvrnEs - PRopRtEraRy FuNo
YEAR ENoED IUNE 30,2013

Revenues:
Rent

Financial

Total revenues

Expenses:

Administrative
Utilities
Operating Maintenance

Taxes and insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total Expenses

Change in net position

Project net position, beginning ofyear

Net position, end of year

PRoPRIETAiY FUND

ESPIRITU SANTO PROIECT

5342,430
617

343.107

716,501

7,624
83,127

36,140
50,565
25821

319,888

23,219

308.666

5331385

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financialstatements.
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COMMONWEAI.IH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNtCtPALtTy OFAGUAS AUENAT PUERTO R|CO

STATEMEIVT OF CasH Ftows - PRopRtErA y FuNDs

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2013

Cash fl ow from operating activities:
Cash received from rentals
lnterest received

Administrative
Utilities
Salaries and wages
Operating and maintenance
Property and liability insurance
lnterest on mortgage
Management fees

Net.ash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of equipment
Deductions from reserve for replacements and interest

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows f,om fi nancing activiiies:

Mort8age principal payments

Net cash used byfinanaing activities

Net increase in cash

Cash at beginning of the year

Cash at ending ofthe year

PRoPRIETARY FUNo

ESNRIIU SANTO PRO,IECI

s341,680
617

342,357

30,L73
14,a2L

125,083

39,640
5,3s3

26,172
26.100

267.342
75.01s

'43,962)
74,142

129.a20)

1s2.626)

1s2,6261

11,431)

80.939

L73IOs

22
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF CatH Flows - pRopRtErARy FuNDs (CoMnNUEo)

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDIUNE 30,2013

Recon.iliation ofcharte in net position to net.ash p.ovided by operatin8 a.tivities:

PROPRIEIARY FUI{D

ESPIRITU sANTo PRo,EcT
Cash flow from ope.atint activities:

Chante in net position 23.219

Adiustments to reaonaile change in
net position to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation 50,665
Decrease in tenants accounts receivable (751)
lncrease (decrease) in:

Accounts payable 7,6j3
Accrued vacations and bonus 560
lnterest on mortgage (351)

Total adiustments 51.796

Net cash provided by operating activities $f5pl5

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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1.

COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OFAGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

NOTEs TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTs

JuitE 30,2013

ORGANIZATION

The Municipality ofAguas Buena's (the Municiparity) is a poriticarand regar entity with fu regisrative and
administrative faculties in every affair of municipal character, with perpetual succession, existence and
legal personality separate and independent from the governmental of the commonwealth of puerto
Rico.

The muniaipal government is comprised ofthe executive and legislative bodies, which are elected every
four years in the Puerto Rico general elections. The executive power is exercised by the Mayor and the
legislative power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has fourteen members.

The Municipality provides the following services to its community: health, public works, education,
public safety, housing, community and social services, welfare, culture and recreation, as well as many
other general and administrative services.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI-ICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the Municipality relatin8 to the funds included in the
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accolnting prinaiples generally accepted in the
united States of America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting
principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), the American tnstitute of Certjfied public Accountants in the publjcation
entitled Audits of state and Local Governmental units and by the Financial Accounting standards Board
(when applicable). The more significant policies ofthe Municipality are described below.

Reporting entity

A reporting entity consists of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that
are included to ensure that financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the
Municipality consists of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the Municipality.
For the Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico, these include various services such as police
protection, recreation (including parks), street maintenance and repair, sanitation, and general
administrative services. The operation of each of these activities is directly controlled by Municipality,s
tegislative BodythrouBh the budgetary process.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Municipality is financially accountable.
The Municipality has no component units.

Government wide and fund financialstatements

Basic flnancial statements include both governments-wide and fund financialstatements.

2.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NorEs To TBE FlNANclaL STATEMENT5 (coNnNUED)

luNE 30,2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

Government-wide statements

TheSovernment.widefinanciatstatements(consistsofthestatementofnetpositionandthestatement
ofac-tivities)thesestatementsreportinformationonalltheactivitiesoftheprimarygovernmentandits
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these

statements.Governmentalactivitieswhichnormallyaresupportedmainlybytaxesand
intergovernmentalrevenuesarereportedseparatelyfrombusiness-typeactivities,whichrelytoa
si8niflcant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported

s;arately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially

accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or

segments are offset by proSram revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a

sp;cific function or segment Pro8ram revenues include a) char8es to customers or applicants who

purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or

."g,"ntundb)grantsandcontributionsthatarerestrictedtomeetinStheoperationalorcapital
reauirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as Seneral revenues.

program-specific capital and operatinS Srant and contributions consist of transactions that are either

maidatory or voluntary nonexchange transactions w1h other governments, organizations, or individuals

that restrict the resources for use in a particular pro8ram. capital grants and contributions consist of

capitat assets or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate

capital assets associated with a specific program. operating grants and contributions consist of

re;ources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating a specific program or can be

usedeitherforoperatingorcapitalpurposesofaspecificprogram,Restrictedcapitalandoperating
grants and contributions are program revenues because they are specifiaally attributable to a pro8ram

ire reducing the net expense of that program to the Municipality' They are reported net of estimated

uncoilectible amounts.

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements se8regate transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate

funds in order to aid financial manaSement and to demonstrate legal compliance. These statements

present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major funds are

a8Sregated and presented in a singie column.

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds:

A) GeneralFund

ThisistheoperatinSfundoftheMunicipalityandaccountsforallfinancialresources,exceptthose
required to be accounted for in anotherfund.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS 8UENAs, PUERTO RICO

NorEs To THE FtNAMIAL STATEMENTs (coNnNUED)

,ul'lE 30,2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B) Debit seNice fund

Thisfundaccountsforresourcesaccumulatedandpaymentsmadeforprincipalandinterestonlong.
term general obligation debt of governmental f unds'

C) Loan 54,145,000

This fund accounts for proceed and disbursements from a general obligation for capital projects.

Measurement focus, basis ofaacountint and financial statement presentation

-rhe government-wide statement of Net Position and the statement of Activities, both government and

busi;ess type activities, are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual

basis of accountinS. Revenues are recorded when earned'and expenses are recorded at the time the

liability is incurred, re8ardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are reco8nized as

revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as

soon as all eliSibility requirements imposed bythe provider have been met'

The governmental fund flnancial statements are presented lsing the current financial resources

mea5-urement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as

they are both measurable and avaitable. LJnder this method revenues are considered to be available

wh;n they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the

currentperiod.Forthispurpose,theEovernmentconsidersrevenuestobeavailableiftheyarecollected
within60daysoftheendofthecurrentfiscalperiod'Expenditulessenerallyarerecordedwhena
liability is incurred, except for debt service, compensated absences and claims and judgments

expenditures which are reported when payment is due

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all

considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current flscal

period.onlytheportionofspecialassessmentsreceivableduewithinthecurrentfiscalperlodis
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are

considered to be measurable and avaitable only when cash is received by the Sovernment'

private-sector standards of accounting and flnancial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989

generally are followed in the government,wide financial statements to the extent that those standards

donotconflictwithorcontradictguidanceoftheGovernmentalAccountingstandardsBoard.
GoVernmentsalsohavetheoptionoffollowingsubsequentprivate.sectorguidancefortheirbusiness.
typeactivitiesandenterprisefunds,subjecttothissamelimitation.TheSovernmenthaselectednotto
follow subsequent private sector guidance.
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NorEs To THE FlNANclaL STATEMtNTs (CoNINUED)

.luNE 30, 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Measurement focus, basis ofatcounting and financial statement presentation (continued)

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eljminated from the government-wide financial

statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charSes to customers or applicants for

goods, services, or privileges provided,2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and

contributions, including special assessments. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as general

revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, Seneral revenues include all taxes'

when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's poliq/ to

use restricted resources first, than unrestricted resources asthey are needed.

proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of financial position, a statement of activities,

and a statements of cash flows The proprietary fund includes a low income housing project know as

Espiritu Santo Project.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the ,,economic resources,, measurement focus and the accrual

basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current of noncurrent) are include on

the statement of net position. The statement of revenues, expenses and change in fund net position

present increases (revenues) and decrease (expenses) in total net position. underthe accrual basis of

accounting,revenuesarerecognizedintheperiodi.whi€htheyareearnedwhileexpensesare
recognized in the period in which the liability is incu.red

Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are Senerated from the primary

operatinSofthefund.Allotherrevenuesarereportedasnon-operatinSrevenues.operatingexpenses
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are

reported a5 non-operatinE expenses

Cash, cash equivalents, aash with tiscal agent and investmeni

The Municipality,s finance director is responsible for investing available resources. The Municipality is

restricted by law to invest only in savinSs accounts and certificates of deposit with banks qualified as a

depositoryofpublicfundsbythePuertoRicoTreasuryDepartment(PRTD)orininstrumentsofthe
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). The Municipality,s policy i5 to invest any excess

cash in interest bearing deposits with institutions qualified by the PRTD. Earnings from these funds are

recorded in the corresponding fund as interest income
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MUNICIPAI,IW OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

Norts To THE FINANC|aL STATEMENTs (coNniluED)

,uNE 30,2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI.ICIES (CONTINUED}

Cash with fiscal agent in the Sovernmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes

issued for the acquisition and construction of major capital improvements cash with fiscal a8ent in the

debt service flnd represents special additional property tax collections retained by the Municipal

Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) and sales tax coliections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico and restricted forthe payment ofthe Municipality's debt service, as established by law'

Pursuant to the Statement of lnvestment Guidetines for the Govemment of the commonwealth of
puerto Rico the balances deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by the Federal

Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) generallY up to a maximum of S25O,OO0 per depositor' ln addition'

pullic funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully collateralized All securities

pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by the Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury but

notintheMunicipality'sname.DepositswithGDBareuninsuredanduncollateralized,However,no
losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have been incurred by the Municipality

through June 30,2013

The Municipatity considers all investments with an

equivalents.

lnterfund receivables and payables

original maturity of three months or less to be cash

Activities between funds that are representative of lendin&/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the

end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from other funds (i e, the current portion of

interfund loans) or advances tofrom other funds (ie, the non current portion of interfirnd loans)'

lnterfunds receivables and payables between funds within the governmental activities are eliminated in

the statement of net Position.

capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which is normally

immovable and of value only to the MunicipalitY, such as roads, bridges, gtreets sidewalks' and drainage

system), are reported in the Sovernment_wide flnancial statements'

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost'

contributedassetsarerecordedatfairmarketvalleasofthedatedonated.Additions,improvements
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized Other costs

incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred When historical cost is not available it is

estimated using historic sales ofthe year ofthe acquisition ofthe related capitalassets'

Depreciationincapitalassetsiscalculatedonthestraight-linebasisoverthefollowingestimateduseful
lives:

lnfrastructure
B'rilding
lmprovementto land

Vehicles
Machinery and equiPment
computer and printer
Furniture

50 years

40 years

25 years

10 years

3 years

15 years
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MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NOTES TO THE FINANOALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30,2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLlClEs (coNTlNuED)

Riskfinancing

The Municipality carries insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses lnsurance

policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the

municipalitles;f Puerto Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the

gror. irop"rty tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection center (the "CR|M") for the year

;nded June 30, 2013 amounted to approximately S7O,155 The current insurance policies have not been

cancelled or terminated. The cRlM also deducted approximately s183,411 for workers compensation

insurance coverinB all municipal employees-

compensated absences

Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2 5 days per month up to maximum of 60 days Unpaid

,acation ti." accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the first day of work. Employees

accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days pel month up to a maximum 90 days, ln the event of

employee resignation, the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the maximum allowed'

Separationfromemploymentpriortouseofallorpartofthesickleaveterminatesallrightsfor
compensation, ex€ept for employees with ten years or more of service who are entitled to sick leave pay

up to the maximum allowed.

Employees,maximumallowedvacationsandvestedsickbenefitsareaccountedforintheStatementof
Net Position.

Fund Balance

During the year, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No 54' Fund Balance

Repoiing and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54), which enhanced the usefulness of fund

balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently

applied. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based

flimarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of

resources reported in governmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB 54, the fund balances amounts are reported as nonspendable

restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned, based on the relative strength of the constraints that

control how specific amounts can be spent, as described follows:

*Nonsoendable-Representresourcesthat.annotbespentreadilywithcashorarelegallyor
contractually reqr.rired not to be spent, including but not limited to inventories' prepaid items'

long_term balances of loans and notes receivable
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POIICIES (CONTINUED)

* Eg$Igled - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by

constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally imposed by creditors or

Erantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue sources

and restrict its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of

reSource providers.

* ggllEiBeg - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action of the

entity's highest level of decision making authority (governing body through resolutions) and can

only be charged by similar resolutions, no laterthan the end ofthe fiscalyear'

* Aljgled - Represent resources intended to be used by the entity for specific purposes but do

not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed (generally resolutions approved

by the governine body) lntent can be expressed by the governing body, or by and official or

body to which the Eoverning body delegates authority in conformity with the bylaws of the

Authority.lngovernmentalfundsotherthanthegeneralfund,assignedfundbalancerepresents
the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed'

* !l8a$!g!gd - Represent the residual classification for the entity's generalfund and includes all

spendableamountsnotcontainedintheotherclassificationslnotherfunds,theunassigned
classificationisusedonlytoreportadeficitbalanceresultingfromoverspendingforspecific
purpose for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned'

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accountinS principles generally accepted in

the united states of America requires mana8ement to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during

the reportlng period. Actual results could differ from those estimates'

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through

were evaluated to be issued

the date the financial statements

3. PROPERTY TAX

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, which is to be filed by May 15 of

each year with the Municipal Revenue collector center (the cRlM), a governmental entity created by the

commonwealthofPuertoRico.Realpropertytaxi5assessedbythecRlMoneachpieceofrealstate.

The assessment is made as of lanuary 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal

property and on estimated value as of 1957 for real property tax The tax on personal property must be

paid in fulltogether with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two installments

by July land January 1
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3. PROPERWTAX{CONTINUED)

The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all

themunicipalitiesofPuertoRico.Beforethebeginningofeachfiscalyear,thecRlMinformsthe
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuinB fiscal

year'Throughot,ttheyear,thecR|MadvancesfundstotheMunicipalitybasedontheinitialestimated
collections. The cRlM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fis€alyear basis, where

byacomparisonismadebetweentheamountsadvancedtotheMunicipalityandamountsadually
collected from taxPaYers.

This settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year_

end, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year-end lf the CRIM remits to the

Mu;icipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the

cRlM is recorded at June 30, However, if advances exceed the amount actually colleded by the cRlM, a

liability to the cRlM is recorded at June 30

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property taxes on

the first S15,OOO of the assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Pueno Rico Treasury Oepartment

assumes payment ofthe basic tax to the Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than s3,500

for which no payment is made As part of Law No. 83 of August 30, 1991, as amended, the exempt

amount to be paid bY Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1'

1992. ln addition, the law grants a tax exception from the payment of personal property taxes of up to

55O,OOO ofthe assessed vatue to retailers having annual net sales of less than 5150,000'

The annual rate for fiscal year 2013 is 8.78% for real property and 6.78% for personal property of which

1.03% of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the commonwealth of Puerto

Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 6'O% and 4 O%, respectively' represent the

Municipality'sbasicpropertytaxrate,whichisappropriatedforgeneralpurposesandaccountedforin
the generai fr.tnd. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a

percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and subsidy from the

commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1 75%

representsthespecialadvaloremtaxrestrictedfordebtserviceandaccountedforinthedebtservice
fund. . The commonwealth contributes an annual tax rate of 0.2% of the property tax collected and the

remaining rate is imposed to the taxpayer.

onlanuary26,2000,PlblicLaw,asamended,wasenactedwhichauthorizedthecRlMtoobtainaloan
up to S2OO million, and for a term not exceeding 30 years, to allow for the financing of the debt that the

municipalitiesofPuertoRicohavewiththecRlMarisin8fromfinalsettlementsofpropertytaxadvances
versls actual collections through fiscal year 2ooo-2001. The amount that the municipalities will colled

from the additional property taxes resulting from the increase in the subsidy from the central

governmenttothemunicipalitieswasassignedthroughthislawtorepaysuchloan-Theincreaseinthis
iubsidy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 1999 As of June 30' 2013' the

"rornt 
du" to CRIM 

".ounting 
to S163,256 is presented as other lonS-term debt {see Note 9)'
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3. PROPERWTAX(CONTINUED)

Total property tax receivable, net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of 57,139,507, amounted to

52,212,609 at lune 30, 2013. The composition of property taxes receivable and the related deferred

revenues is a follows at June 30, 2013:

Gross property taxes receivable

less allowance for uncolledible accounts

Net property taxes receivable

Deferred {unavailable property)

tax revenues in GFFS

General
Fund

51,207,129
5,488,142

S1JEE81

5t-6!4.80 !

Debt service
Fund

s2,150,987
1.6s1.365

5 4ss-822

5 4ra984

Total

$9,3s2,116
7,t39.507

52212-6fD

52-085J85

4. VOLUME OF BUSINESS TAX

The municipal license tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain blsinesses and

industrial organizations that operate in the M!nicipality. The tax rates are 1 50% for financing

institutions and .50% for the other business institutions. The taxpayers must file a return not later than

April 15 of every year and the tax is payable in two installments, due in luly l and January 1of the

following fiscal year. The amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount if payment is

made on or before the filing date. The Municipality levied and collected during the year ended June 30.

2013, 5583,417 corresponding to the following fiscal year volume of business tax. This amount was

recorded as deferred revenue, and is presented as a liability in the accompanyingfinancial statements.

SALE TAX

Pursuant to an amendment to Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue Code, Act 117 ofJuly 4, 2005, the Municipal

Legislature approved the Ordinance 6, Series 2005-2007 to established a €ity tax contribution, effective

November 1, 2006, to 1.5% over all transactions of sales of Soods and services made on Aguas Buena s

boundaries. According to the Ordinance, these new resources will be principally used in the following

activities: repairs and improvements of Municipal roads, infrast.ucture and sport facilities, construction

ofcurbs and sidewalk, purchases of heavy equipment.

Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico contracted a service organization to manage the imposition

and collection ofthe sales tax,

Pursuant to the provisions of the Law Number 80 of 1u|y,29,2007 and effective August 1, 2007, the

citizenship contribution was uniformly established in 1.5%, for all the municipalities in Puerto Rico, of
which 1% will be collected by the municipalities and the remaining .5% will be collected by the Treasury

Department of the commonwealth of Puerto Rico A portion of those funds will be deposited in the

Puerto Rico Governmental Development Bank, as a redemption fund, forfinancing capital projects to the

municipalities.

5.
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6. GRANTS AND ENTITLEMENTS REVENUE

- Grants and entitlements revenue consists of contributions received from certain quasi_public

corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, such as the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority.

Also, the Municipality receives some subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which include,

- amon8 others, a subsidy for general operations and for the financing of capital improvements. The

intergovernmental revenues are recorded in the general fund, except for those that are legally restricted

for expenditure for specified purposes which are recorded in other Sovernm e nta l fu nds

- 7, OEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of the followings:

Municipal license tax collected in the fiscal year

2012-2013 corresponding to the following fiscal year S 583,417

Portion ofgrants received for which qualifyin8 expenditures
have not been incurred. 94,015

Other receivable not available in current fiscal year 52,809

Property tax deferred for governmental fund financial

statement and recurred as income in the Sovernmental
wide financial statements. -2.BE5/E5

$2316J26

8. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT

Restricted cash in the business-type activities consists of:

Tenant securitydeposits
Reserve for replacement

S 9,602
20L.861

52111189

- lJnder the regulatorY agreement, Project is required to set aside amounts for the replacement of
property and other Project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD - Restricted Deposits are held in

separate accounts and generally are not available for operating purposes.

- Tenant,s Security Deposit and its accumulated interest are held in a separate bank savings account in

the name of the Project, in compliance with USDA_RD and HUD requirements' Any amounts not

_ returned to the tenant due to lease violations are transferred to the Project's general operating account.
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9. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

P maryGovernment

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not beingdepreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

Capital assets being dePreciated:

Buildings, Park and courts

Machinery and equiPment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Euildings, Parks and courts

[,4achinery and equiPment

Total

Total depreciable capital assets, net

Govemmental activities caPital assets net

Business-rype activities:
Capital assetsnetbeing depreciated:

Land

capital a5sets being dePreciated:

Building and imProvements

Equipment

Less accumulated depre.iation:
Building and imProvements and

Total depreciablecapital assets, net

Business activities capital ass€ts, net

Balance

Jun€ 30.2012 lncreases Decreases

Balance

lune 30.2013

4.829,216 1.310.970

2,a7\9!9
22,a96,392
4,2a2,229 635,161

2.342,192 86.538

32,392.712 722.309

5 2,717,317

2,771.439
S 94,990

1,215.980

5 2,212,361

3.863.461

6.075.828

2,a71,979
22,a96,192
4,916,055
2.424,730

33,113.096

1344,7O4)

{10,808,771)
12,41O,0401
12.262,136)

(15.886.251)

17.226.845

s0,700

1,961,554
122.757

2.749.711,

{1.829.838}

359.873

410.573

5{64.3s8)

(64,358)

1282,174l,
(10,234,043)

(2,103,608)

12.202,934)

l14,a22.7s9)

17.559.973

22.399,189

s0.700

1,967,554
178.195

2.145.749

(t.779.17 4l

366.57s

417,275

s22i1$A54

(62,s30)

ls14,72Al
{368,373)

1s9.802)

(1.06s.433)

{343.128)

967 -W2

(1,941)

(1.941)

(1,941)

(1.941)

{64,358) 23.302.613

43.962

(s0.564)

(6.702)

16.702)

s_9flJ4A
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MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NOTEs TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN]S (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30,2013

9. CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows:

General administration
Public safety
Education and recreation
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
Culture and tourist it development

Economic develoPment
Family and social development
Housing

Total depreciation exPense

Governmental
Activities

s 181,611
50,845

786,437
s30,093

16,291
3,840
2,530

93,386

Business-Type
Activities

Sso.663

ss0-663s 1-065t33

10. LONG.TERM DEBTS

Long-term liability activityfor the year ended Jtrne 30,2013 was as follows:

Primary Government
Goveinmental adivities:

Bonds and notes
Other long-term debt:

Compensated absences

Amount due to CRIM

Landfill

Total

Beginning
Balance

s 9,013,000

1,377,560
t69,9L6

1.360.000

t7,920,476

Additions Reductioni

5(ss5,000)

11s1,2791
(6,560)

Ending
Balance

S 8,4s8.ooo

1,226,241
153,256

1.350.000

17,207,537

Due within
one vear

s 399,000

850,000
6,801

1712,939) 1,255,801

Business-type activities:
Mortgage payable

Total S1215L078

152,526) 371.976 56.994

s1755l65) ir585E3 s412J95
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10. LONG-TERM OEBTS {CONTINUED}

- Governmental activities:

Bonds and notes:

S92o,OOO Public lmprovement Bonds, Serial 1995-96 payable in annual installments of

S45,ooo to $85,OOO through July 1, 2O2o plus interest at 6.12%. 5 505,000

SSoO,OOO Public lmprovement Bonds, Serial 1989-90 payable in two annual installments of

S,r4,oo0 and S48,OOo throu8h January 1, 2015, plus interest at 5% 92,000

S4oo,o0o Public lmprovement Bonds, Serial of 1991-92 payable in annual installments

ranging from s3o,ooo to 534,000 throuSh January 1, 2016, plus interest at 5.52%. 96,000

52,285,000 General obligation Bonds, Serial 2005-2006 payable in annual installments

ranging from 560,000 to S175,OOO, throu8h luly 1, 2030, plus interest at 6.5% 1,955,000

5255,000 General obli8ation Bonds, Serial 2007-2008 due in annual installments ranBinB

from S5,ooO to S2O,OOO through July 1, 2031. plus interest at 6 50%. 225,000

5535,000 Generalobligation Bond, serial2008-2009 payable in two annualinstallments

ofS85,00O to SIOO,OOO through luly 1,2014 plus interest based on LIBOR at 90

days plus 1.25%. 185,000

$955,000 General Municipal Obligation, Serial 2012-12 payable in annual installments

ranging from S45,OOO to S1o5,OOO through luly 1, 2025. lnterest at 1.5% 920,000

S1,51O,OOO special Obligation Bond, Serial 2003-04 payable in an annual installment ranging

ofS195,ooo through July 1,2014 phs interest based on LIBoR at 90 days plus 1 25%. 195,000

54,145,000 Special Obligation Bond, Serial 2011-11 payable in annual installments ranginB

from 57o,oOO to S345,ooo through July 1, 2035 lnterest at 1.5% over prime rate due

semiannually. 4,020,000

S27O,OOO Special Obli8ation Bond serial 2012-12 payable in annual installments ranging from

S15,OOO to 53O,OOO through July 1, 2023. lnterest at 1.5% over prime rate due

semiannually. 255.000

5&!!5E 000

36



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OFAGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO
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10. LONG.TERM OEBTS (CONTINUED}

The annual debt service requirements to maturity bonds and notes payables of June 30, 2013 are as

Governmental -type Activities:
Atgregate
Obliqation

5 789,s03
1,158,993

820,334
795,125
794,O76

3,811,582
3,204,410

1.075,938

514-893i83

Business-type adivilies:

Mortgage Payable consists of permanent residences loans provided by USDA-Rural Development. The

land and buildings of the Project secure the mortgage note. The mortgage note bears interest at 8%,

including subsidy interest of 7%. Principal and interest are payable in monthly installments of 56,566

thro'rgh 2018. The maturates of the mortgage note at lune 30, 2013 for the next five (5) years and

thereafter are as follows:

Year ended lune 30

2014
2015

2016
2077
2014
2019-2023
2024-2024
2029-2033
2034-2036

Principal

s 399,000

630,000
314,000

310,000
330,000

1,850,000
1,880,000
1,780,000

965.000

58158.000

lnterest
S 39o,so3

s28,993
505,334
485,125

464,076
7,967,682
1,324,410

662,422
111.938

s6-435r!83

Year ended lune 30
2014
2015
2016
2017

2018
2019

Principal

5 s6,994
67,724

66,847
72,396
74,405
41.610

,JDES

lnterest
521,797

17,067

LL,944
6,39s

985

Aggregate
oblisation
$ 78,791

78,791
74,79t
78,791
79,397

s4:!fl65
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NoTEs To THE FINANOAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

JUNE 30,2013

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

Advanaes from CRIM and PR Tteasury Department

This amount represents the balance owed to CRIM as

57,276 includin8 interest at 6.2%. The advances from
described in Note 3 and is payable in monthly

CRIM and PR Treasury Oepartment mature as

Year ended lune 30

2013

2014
2075
20t6
2017

2018-2022
2023-2027

202A-2033

Principal

S 6,801
6,9s2
7,L17
7,282
7,461

40,439

54,340
32.470

5163256

lnterest

s 9,9s5
9,531

9,O97

8,652
8,198

33,'146

21,585
3,421

s1EL591

Aggregate
ObliEatior

5 16,7s5
16,483
15,208

15,934
15,659
74,745
75,925
36.697

526U41

11. RETIREMENT SYSIEM:

Oefined Benefit Pension Plan

TheEmployees,Retircmentsystemofthecommonwealthanditsinstrumentalities{the,,Retirement
System"), created pursuant to Act. No.447 of May 15, 1951, as amended, is a cost_sharing multiple

employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by, and reported as a component unit of the

Commonwealth. All regular employees of the Municipality hired before January 1, 2000 and less than

55 years of a8e at the date of employment became members of the Retirement System as a condition

to ih"ir e.ployment. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a refund of his/her

accumulated contributions.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTE5ToTHE FINANCIAL SIATEM ENTS (CONIINUED}

JUNE 30,2013

11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED)

The Retirement system provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to legislation

enacted by the commonwealth,s le8is|ature' Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and

the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation. Disability

benefits are available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. However, a

member must have at least ten years ofservice to receive non occupational disability benefits'

Members who have attained at least 55 years of a8e and have completed at least 25 years of creditable

service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten years of creditable

service are entitled to an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The amount of the annuity shall be

one and one-hatf percent ofthe averaBe compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number ofyears of

creditableserviceuptotwentyyears,plustwopercentoftheaveragecompensation,asdeflned'
multiplied by the number ofyears of creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case willthe annuity

be less than 5200 Per month

participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the Merit

Annuity. participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent of the average

compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average compensation' as

defined.

commonwealth legislation reqlires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first 5550 of their monthly

Eross salary and 8.275% for the excess over S55O of monthly gross salary The Municipality is required

by the same statute to contribute 9.275% ofthe participant's gross salary'

Defi ned Contribution Plan

TheLe8islatureofthecommonwealthenactedActNo'3o5onseptember24,1999,whichamendsAct
No.44, to establish, among others, a defined contribution savings plan program (the "Pro8ram") to be

administered by the Retirement System All regular employees hired for the first time on or after

.lanuaryl,2o0oandformeremployeeswhoparticipatedinthedefinedbenefitpensionplanandare
rehiredonorafterlanuaryl,2ooobecomemembersofaProgramasaconditiontotheiremployment
received a refund of their contributions. ln addition, employees who at December 31, 1999 were

participants of the defined pension plan, had the option, up to March 31, 2000, to irrevocably transfer

theirpriorcontributionstothedefinedbenefitpensionplanplusinterestthereontotheProgram.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTEs TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONIINUED)

JUNE 30,2013

11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONrlNUED)

Act No. 305 requires employees to contribute 8.275% of their monthly gross salary to the Program.

Employees may elect to increase their contribution up to 10% of their monthly gross salary. Employee

contributions are credited to his/her individual account established under the Program. Participants

have three options to invest their contributions to the Program. lnvestment income i5 credited to the
participant's account semi-annually.

The Municipality is required by Act No. 305 to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary' The

Retirement System will use these contributions to increase its asset level and reduce the unfunded

status ofthe deflned benefit pension plan.

Upon retirement, the balance in the participant's account will be used to purchase an annuity contract,

which will provide for a monthly benefit during the participant's life and 50% of such benefit to the
participant's spouse in case of the participant's death. Participants with a balance of 510,000 or less at

retirement will receive a lump-sum payment. ln case of death, the balance in the participant's account

will be paid in a lump-sum to his/her beneficiaries. Participants have the option of a lump-sum or
purchasing an annuity contract in case of permanent disability.

Total employees and employer contributions to the above mentioned plans during the year ended lune

30, 2013 amounted to approximately S161,846 and S184,053, respectively. This amount represented

1OO% ofthe required contribution for the corresponding year.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the year

ended lune 30, 2013, a copy ofwhich can be obtained from the Retirement System

On April 4, 2013 the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico issued the Act. No. 3, which

amends the previously issued Act 447 of 1951 ("Retirement System Act") This Act made signifi€ant

changes to the Employees Retirement System ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico trust created by Act

447 of May 15, 1951, as amended, to provide pension and other benefits to retired employees of the
government of Puerto Rico and its instrumentalities. The changes established in Act No. 3 will apply to
all employees participating in the Retirement System for the period starting in July 1, 2013-

12. CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adiustment bY grantor

agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the

applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by the Srantor
cannot be determined at this time, although the Municipality expects such amounts, if any, to be

immaterial.
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MUNICIPAUW OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTEs To THE FINAIIiCIA! STAIEMENTs (COIfiII,IUED}

JUNE 30,2013

12. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The Municipality is defendant and/or codefendant in several litiSations arising out of the normal

M u n icipa litv's operations. Most ofthe cases are covered by insurance. Management, after consultation

with legal counsel is of the opinion that the ultimate liability, in excess of insurance coverage, if any,

resulting from such pending litigations will not have a material adverse effect on the Municipality's

financial position .

13. MUNICIPAL LANDFILI.

State and federal laws and regulations requires to the Municipality to carry out certain closure work

when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitorin8 functions at site in

the following years. ln accordance with GASB No. 18 "Accountin8 for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill

Closure and Post Closure Care Costs" the Municipality must has to perform a study of the closing and

post closin8 costs in order to recognize a provision forthose costs.

The Municipality operated a solid waste landfill that was closed during 1994. Total closure costs

incurred as of lune 30, 2013 were approximately S1,360,000. The closure costs incurred were mostly

provided by federalawards under the State Block Grant Pro8ram

The Municipality is still in process of performing tests in the landfill site in order to assess a final

settlement of closure and post-closure costs. A preliminary estimate of these costs as of lune 30, 2013

amounted to 51,360,000. Accordingly, a provision for future closure and post closured costs was

recognized in the accompanying financial statements
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SCHEOUIE OI BUDGEIARY COMPARISON

FoR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2013

GENERAI. FUND

Revenues:

Propertytaxes
Municipaltax
Construction excise taxes

lnterest
Rent
Grants and entitlements
Other

Totalrevenues

Expenditures:
General administration
Public safety
Education and recreational
Public works and sanitation
cultural and Tourist Development
Economic Development
Family and social Development
Housing and Urban Development

Totalexpenditures

Excess of expenditures over revenues

70,547.421 10.541.421

ORIGINAL

BUDGET

s 1,sss,044
700,000

700,000
200,000

120,000
6,420,377

845,000

4,447,203
520,640
858,523

3,260,887
202,125
304,386
703,027
193.936

AMMENDED

EUDGET

VARIANCE

W|TH FINAL BUDGET

EAVORABI-E

IUNFAVORABI.E)

S s6,076
(s8s,840)

25,758
(7,988)

(853)
(464.104)

1977,56t)

527,196
55,399
44,389
a3,L79
18,095

3L,3L4
70,727
16,337

846,030

$113l5f,!)

ACTUAL

S1,sss,o44
756,O76

7L4,160
225,758
112,0t2

6,419,5L4
381.895

9.s63.860

3,915,028
475,241
793,376

3,233,734
208,198
258,168

630,116
171,530

9.695.391

s txl1l31)

s 1,555,044

700,000
700,000

200,000
120,000

6,420,377
846.000

4,M2,224
530,640
a31,765

3,315,913
226,293
299,482
700,237
ta1.a67

10,541.421 70,541,421
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COMMONWEAI,TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUry OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTES To ScHEDUtE OF BUoGEIASY CoMPARISoN

JUNE 30,2013

1. BUDGETS ANO BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financialstatements:

1) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund. Formal bud8etary integration is not employed for special revenue funds
because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through legal and contractual grant
requirements provisions.

2) On or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Municipal Le8islative Body a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commencin8 the following luly 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means for financing them.

3) Prior to June 13, the budget is legally enacted throu8h passage of an ordinance.

4) The Municipal Legislative Body approves, by ordinance budget appropriations by functional
basis. The Mayor is authorized to transfer bud8eted amounts between departments within any
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved
by the Municipal Legislative Body.

5) Unused appropriations for the annualbudgeted funds lapse atthe end ofthe year.

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actual results of operations,
presented in the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual General Fund, is

in conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipality for a better comparison with
the budget information.

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capital projects,
debt service and special revenue funds because projects are funded on a multiyear nature,
generally requirin8 several years to complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively
achieved through general obligation bond indentures and legal and contractual grant agreement
provisions.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OFAGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

NOIES TO SCHEDULE OF BUOGETARY COMPARISON

JUNE 30,2013

2. RECONCILIATION OF GAAP TO BUOGETARY BASIS

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the revenues and expenditures of the General Fund at the end
ofthe year, from the generally accepted accounting principles to budgetary basis, are as follows:

Excess ofexpenditures over revenues, budgetary basis s(131,s31)

Adjustments to accounts payable and accrued expenses and

accounts receivable to adjust budgetary basis a modified
accrual basis (155,652)

Expenses from state sales tax does not budget in the general fund 1,019,615

lncome from state sale tax does not budget in the generalfund (900,187)

5!J51t6)
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MUNICIPALIW OFAGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

Sc'IEoUTt O' EXPE DIURES OF FEDERAI AWARD9

FoRTHE YEAR E DTDJUNE 30,2013
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUW OFAGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIURE5 Of FEoEiAI. AwABos

YEAR ENoEoJUNE 30,2013

NUMBER DISBURSEMENT

US Department oI Housingand Urban
Development
Passed through:

Municipal Service Administration:
community Development Block Grant 14.228 S 849.105

Direct Program:
section 8- Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 1,o44,47o

Supportive Housing Program 74.235 63,211

US Department of Agriaulture
Passed through:

PR Department of Education:

child and Adult Food Program

Us Department of Health and Human SeNiaes

Passes throuBh:
PR Department of Family:

Child Care and Development Block Grant

US Department ofHomeland Securitv
Passes through:

PR office of Management and Budget (GAR):

Public Assistance Grant

10.558

93.575

97.036

110,006

351,399

149,462

- Us Depaftment of Enerqv

Passes throuBh:
PR Ener8y Affairs Administration:

- Energl Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Pro8ram 81.128 89,453

_ 
Total Expenditures Federal Awa.ds ,t Er
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NOfES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FED'RAI. AWARDS

JUNE 30,2013

- 1. BA5I5 OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of

- Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico and is prepared on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, amounts presented in the accompanying schedule a8ree to amounts

_ 
Or"rented in the basic financial statements

48



REPORT ON INTERNALCONTROL OVER

FINANCIAT REPORTING AND ON COMPUANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE wlTH GOVERNMENT AUO]TING STANDARDS

49



CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
CERTIFIEO PUAUC ACCOUTTAT'SA}ID COTISULTAI{TS

II{DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAT{CIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPI-IANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAI- SIAIEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE wlTH 6OVERNMENr AUDTr'NG STANDARDS

To Honorable Mayor and
Municipaliw l-eaislative Body

Municipality of Atuas Buenas

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

We have audited, in accordance with the auditin8 standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government auditing Stondotds
issued by the comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental

activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remainin8 tund information
of Munlcipality of Aauas Buenas. Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Municipality oI Aguas Buenas,

Puerto Rico's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated lanuary 30,2014.
Others auditors audited the financial statements of Espiritu Santo Proiect, as described in our report on

Municipality of Aguas guenas, Puerto Rico's financial statements. This report does not include the
results ofthe other auditors'testing of internal control ovea financial reporting of compliance and other
matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

lnternal cont,ol ove. Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Municipality of ASuas

Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressin8 an opinion on the effectiveness of
Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion

on the effectiveness of Municipaliw of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control.

A deficiency in internol cont.ol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assiSned fundions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A mote ol weokness is a deficiency, or a

combination ofdeficiencies, in internalcontrol, such that there i5 a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement ofthe entitys financial statements will noi be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis. A sigrficont deliciency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weaknes' yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

/-PA GosnMtalvr , \ Aldit o6ttY cenrer

MEMBEfi:
Am€rie. lnstitute of cenified Publir Accoq.tants
Plerto Rico Society of Certified Public Accountants

TIL:7a7-732-4O20 FAX: 7a7-732{6a5 EMA|L:.diaz@erlosrdi.z.pa.om



Complian.e and Other Matters

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs that we consider to be si8nificant deficiencies in internal control over financial reportinS. Finding

13-1.

As part of obtalning reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's

financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements/ noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompiiance or other matters that are required to be reported Lrndet Govenment Auditing Stondords

and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as item 13-1.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Govemment Auditing Stondords in consadering the entity's internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

, Diaz CPA, SC
lanuary 30, 2014

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E55458 ofthe Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Public Accountants was

afflxed to the original ofthis report.

License No. 275
Expire December 1,2015
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CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
cERTtFtED PUBLIC ACCOUXTIiITS lttD COttsULTlxts

INDEPENDENT AUDIIOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAI. CON1ROL OVER COMPUANCE REQUIRED BYOMB CIRCUI.AR A-133

To Honorable Mayor and
Muni.ipaliV Legislative Body

Municipality oI Atuas Buenas

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

Report on Compliance fo. Each Maior Fedelal Program

We have audited MuniciPalitY of ASuas Buenas, Puerto Rico's compliance with the types ofcompliance

requirements desc bed inlhe OMB Circulor A-733 Complidnce Supplefiert that could heve a direct and

material effect on each of MuniciPality of Aguas Buenas, Puefto Rico-s major federal programs for the

year ended June 30, 2013. Municipality of ASuas Buenas, Puefto Rico's major federal programs are

identified in the summary of audito/s results section of the accompanyinE schedule of findings and

questioned costs. Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements include the

operations of the Espiritu Santo Project, which received 5647,199 in federal awards which is not

included in the schedule durin8 the yea. ended June 30, 2013. Our audit, described below, did not

include the operations of Espiritu santo P.oiect because Municipality of A8uas Buenas, Puerto Rico

engaged other auditors to perform an audit in accotdance with oMB Circular A-133.

Md n o gcm en{ s R espo nsibi I itY

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contrads, and

Srants applicable to its federalprograms.

Audito / s Respo nti b i I ity

our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance foa each of Municipality oI Aauas Buenas,

Puefto Rico's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements

referred to above. we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards

generally accepted in the United states of America; the standards applicable to financial audits

contained in Goyerrme nt auditing stondotds, issued by the comptroller General of the united states;

and OMB Circular A-133, Audits oI Stotes, LNol Governments, ond Non'Prcfit Orqonizotions lhose

standards and oMB circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refefied to above

that could have a direct and material elfect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality oI Atuas Buenas, Pue o Ri'ds compliance

with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

CPA ffi;H#c"-..
MEM6ER:
Ame.ion lnst_iute of certified plblic Accohtants
prerto Ri@ Society of certified Publi. Accounta.ts

Poaox{,a,44MFAEIIASAsI,AGuA5BUEltAs,PUr$oRlcoooTo3IEL:747.7:}2.a)20fAx:7a7.732.o5a5EMAILCdid@@rlo5rdi&.pa.M



We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal pro8ram. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Municipality of Aguas

Buenas, Puerto Rico's complian€e.

opinion on Eoch Mojor Federol Ptogtun

ln our opinion, Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico complied, in all material respects, with the
types ofcompliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materialeffect on each

of its majorfederal programs for the yearended June 30,2013.

Report on lnternal Control over compliance

Management of Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico is responsible for establishing and

maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. ln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered MuniciPality of
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditinB procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance

with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingiy, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puefto Rico's internal control over compliance.

A deJiciency in intenol control ovet complionae exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow mana8ement or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal pro8ram on a timely basis. A mdte ol weokness in internol contrcl ovet

complionce is a deticiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that

there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal progmm will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signilicont

deficiency in intefiol control over cofiplionce is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control over compliance with a type of compliance reqlirement of a federal program that is less severe

than a material weakness in internalcontrol over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over

compl,ance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

materialweaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordin8ly, this report is not su,table for any other purpose.

lanuary 30, 2014
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E55459 ofthe Puerto Rico

society of certified Public Accounta nts was

afflxed to the original ofthis repon.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUA5 BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SCHEDULE OF FINOINGSAiIO QUISIIONED COfiS

FoRTB. YEAR ENDEDIUNE 30,2013
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI,IW OFAGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

scHEDur.r oF FtNDtitGs AitD QuEsnoNEo Cosrs
FoR THE YEAR ENDGD.IUNE 30,2013

- SECTION I. SUMMARY OFAUDITOR'S RESULTS

FinancialStatemenis

Type of auditor's report issued Unqualified

- lnternalcontroloverfinancialreporting:

. Material weakness identified? _yes _Lno
Significant deficienc'y identified that is not considered
to be materialweaknesses? 

-yes 
--Lno

- Noncompliance materialto financial statement noted? 
-yes 

--Lno

Materialweakness identified? _yes __Lno
. SiEnificant deficiency identified that are not considered

to be material weakness? 

-Yes 
--Lno

Type ofauditor's report issued on compliance for major programs

Oualified

Federal Awards

lnternal control over major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in ac.ordance with section 510(a) ofCircular A-133

ldentification of major programs:

CFA Number(s) Name of Federal ProEram

74.871 Section 8 - Housing Choice
Voucher

M22A Community Development
Block Grants

yes __Lno

5300,000

_yes __Lno

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A

- and type g programs:

- Audit qualified as low-risk audited?
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COMMONWEAI.TH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI.ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

S€HEDUIE OF FINDINGsAND QUE5TIoNED CoSTs

FORTHE YEAR ENDED.IUNE 30,2013

SECTION II. FINANCIAI. STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding No.13-1- Municipal Solid Waste LandlillGASB f8

- The estimated liability and the related disclosure prese.ted in the financial statement related to costs of
closure and postclosure of the Municipal solid waste landfill is not based on actual engineering studies.
Therefore, we were unable to obtain a reliable base on which those estimates were based.

- Management believes that the effect in the basic flnancial statements is not material. However, as
years going by the accrual will be material and the amount must be based on reliable sources.

- We recommend performing the engineering studies to determine the factors necessary to calculate the
amount to be accrued for cost closure and postclosu.e care. These costs include the following:

- The cost of equipment expected to be installed and facilities expected to be constructed near or
after the date the landfill stops accepting waste and during the postclosure period. Such equipment
might include 8as monitorinS and collection systems, storm water management systems, and
groundwater monitoring wells.

- The cost offlnalcover (i.e., capping) expected to be applied near or after the closure date.

- The cost of monitoring and maintaining the expected usable landfill area during the postclosure
period.

The amount to be accrued each period should be determined using a depletion approach and should be
based on the percentage ofcapacity used dlring the period.
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